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• Library of Congress –
• https://www.loc.gov/rr/scitech/trs/trswhatare.html
• The names given to these publications series vary and include 

such generic categories as "technical reports," "working 
papers," "preprints," "research memoranda," "internal notes," 
"occasional papers," "discussion papers," and "gray (or grey) 
literature.

• The format provides rapid communication of new research 
results.

• The reports are disseminated to a targeted audience. 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Note: Technical report databases also contain photos, conference 
papers, transcripts of speeches, and abstracts of journal articles by 
researchers; we’re including those too.

What is a technical report?
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https://www.loc.gov/rr/scitech/trs/trswhatare.html


What is a technical report? – cont’d.

• A technical report is a document written by a researcher detailing 
the results of a project and submitted to the sponsor of that project. 

• Many of Georgia Tech's reports are government-sponsored and are 
on microfiche. DOE, NASA and the Department of Defense are top 
sponsors. A number of U.S. Government sponsors now make 
technical reports available full image via the Internet.

• University research centers and state agencies also issue technical 
reports.
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What is a technical report? – cont’d.

They tend to possess the following characteristics:

• May be published before the corresponding journal literature

• Content may be more detailed than the corresponding journal 
literature, although there may be less background information since 
the sponsor already knows it

• Technical reports are usually not peer reviewed unless the report 
is separately published as journal literature

• Classified and “export controlled” reports have restricted access.

• Obscure acronyms and codes are frequently used.
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Online Sources for Full-Text of Reports 

This, and the following 7 slides – list databases as a convenient 
reference

• Agency databases – NTRL [NTIS]; science.gov ; NTRS [NASA] ; 
TRID ; DTIC ; ERIC ; DOE; and others

• Agency websites (caveat - report is often not permanently 
retained)

• HathiTrust

• Federal contractor websites such as RAND

• Catalog of U.S. Government Publications (links to permanent 
full-text if available)
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Multi-agency Databases

• NTRL
• National Technical Reports Library (NTIS – National Technical

Information Service)
• Historical and current federally-funded technical reports
• Over 3 million titles with links to over 800,00 full text (in PDF)
• Example
https://ntrl.ntis.gov/

• Science.gov
• Over 60 databases from 15 federal agencies
• Example
http://www.science.gov
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Agency Databases

• DTIC: Public DoD Technical Reports

• Technical Reports by organizations funded by the Department of Defense 
to perform research in a wide variety of industries and disciplines

• Search box is at the top of the screen –

Search this site, DoD S&T Reports, and more
• Can sort by relevance or date and limit records to DoD technical reports

• Full-text of selected reports, especially of recent reports

https://discover.dtic.mil/

• NTRS: NASA Technical Reports Server

• Selected full text reports from NASA and its predecessor, NACA

• Left column - can search by Title, Author etc.

• Example

https://ntrs.nasa.gov/
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Agency Databases (Cont’d)

• TRID Online. The TRIS and ITRD Database
• Transport Research International Documentation. Produced by 

Transportation Research Board. Selected full text report links
• Example
https://trid.trb.org

• Department of Energy (DOE)
• Dept. of Energy, Office of Scientific and Technical Information (OSTI). 
• Use Advanced Search (drop down menu, right of search box) to refine by 

Title, Author, More Options (Resource Type technical report etc.). FAQ (tips) 
• Example
https://www.osti.gov/

• Agricola
• National Agricultural Library, Dept. of Agriculture. Selected records linked to 

full-text documents online. Advanced Search
https://agricola.nal.usda.gov/
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https://trid.trb.org/
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Agency Databases (Continued)

• NSCEP
• National Service Center for Environmental Publications. EPA
• Consumer focus, but selected reports are available
• Note: some materials, for example “Climate Change Indicators of the 

United States”, a biennial, have not been updated the past few years
• Example
https://www.epa.gov/nscep

• United States Geological Survey
• Selected reports in USGS Publications Warehouse
• Example
http://pubs.er.usgs.gov/

• ERIC
• Dept. of Education. Institute of Education Sciences. Selected full-text 
https://eric.ed.gov/
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Additional Agencies

• Congressional Research Service (CRS)  Example

https://crsreports.congress.gov

• Congressional Budget Office (CBO)  Example

https://www.cbo.gov/

• Government Accountability Office (GAO)  Example

https://www.gao.gov/

• Catalog of U.S. Government Publications

• Links to permanent full-text if available

https://catalog.gpo.gov
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Other Sources for Digitized Reports

• HathiTrust Digital Library

• 1.4 million government documents from 40 institutions. 
Selected technical reports

• Example

https://www.hathitrust.org/

• TRAIL - Technical Reports Archive & Image Library

• 86,000 digitized reports

• Example

http://technicalreports.org/
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Other Sources for Digitized Reports – cont’d.

• RAND Corporation  [Note: the url is -- .org, NOT .com (different co.)]

http://www.rand.org/

• Internet Archive

https://archive.org/

• USA.gov [Note: also includes many state-level documents]

https://www.usa.gov/

• University repositories  [Note the copyright is with each title, as 
authors are not federal employees]

http://www.rand.org/
https://archive.org/
https://www.usa.gov/


Georgia Tech Library Technical Report Guide
"Research Help Support" (top row)  

"Research Guides"
"Technical Reports" 

https://libguides.gatech.edu/techreports

More information

https://libguides.gatech.edu/techreports
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Georgia Tech Library 
Technical Reports Research Guide

https://libguides.gatech.edu/techreports

https://libguides.gatech.edu/techreports


https://libguides.gatech.edu/techreports/databases

List of selected
technical reports

databases

https://libguides.gatech.edu/techreports/databases
https://libguides.gatech.edu/techreports/databases
https://libguides.gatech.edu/techreports/databases


wind farms

wind turbines
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• Free database from NTIS

• Advanced Search
• Fields (drop down menu): Title, 

Author, Keyword, etc. 

• Help – tips, such as strings are 
automatically stemmed (searches 
plural and singular …)

• NTIS is also available as a 
subscription database through 
platforms with powerful search 
engines – ProQuest, Engineering 
Village, STN. Georgia Tech Library 
subscribes to ProQuest’s NTIS

NTRL

https://ntrl.ntis.gov/

https://ntrl.ntis.gov/NTRL/help.xhtml
https://about.proquest.com/products-services/ntis-set-c.html
https://www.elsevier.com/solutions/engineering-village/content/ntis
https://www.cas.org/sites/default/files/documents/ntis.pdf
https://ntrl.ntis.gov/


The U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) acquired and installed a 1.5-megawatt 

(MW) wind turbine at the National Wind Technology Center (NWTC) at the 

National Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL). This turbine (hereafter 

referred to as the DOE 1.5) is envisioned to become an integral part of the 

research initiatives for the DOE Wind Program…

• Snippet of NTRL abstract above

• NTRL record fields include: 
keywords, page count, and 
agency name
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https://ntrl.ntis.gov/NTRL/dashboard/searchResults/titleDetail/DE151215120.xhtml
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Power Performance Test Report for the U.S. 
Department of Energy 1.5-Megawatt Wind Turbine

PDF is also available by searching DOE’s 
OSTI.GOV Advanced Search

Drop down menu   Fields Title, Author…

https://www.osti.gov/

https://doi.org/10.2172/1215120

OSTI.GOV record

https://www.osti.gov/
https://doi.org/10.2172/1215120


https://www.science.gov/

Consider using Advanced Search
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https://www.science.gov/
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“climate change” or “global warming”

Note: can select subject, 

or selected content from 

Agency websites
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Note: selected content 

from Agency websites
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Alert feature
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Example – recent email for search alert
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tornado safe room

http://www.science.gov
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http://www.science.gov/


Links to NTIS or, select the pdf
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https://trid.trb.org/

Can select 
broad Subject 
areas.

Some useful 
Source 
selections 

28

https://trid.trb.org/


Practical guide for cities; 

lists key resources

Subject areas:  Pedestrians and bicyclists

Source:            state depts. of transportation
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e-scooter Another search; using 

Keyword field 

and 

Subject areas: 

Pedestrians and 

bicyclists
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To browse the most 

recent reports, just 

select Search

https://crsreports.congress.gov
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Issuing many 3-5 page 

“Insight” reports on current 

issues, with active links.

https://crsreports.congress.gov/


“Insight” report, updated 

March 25, 2021
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https://crsreports.congress.gov/product/pdf/IN/IN11635

https://crsreports.congress.gov/product/pdf/IN/IN11635
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Operation Warp Speed Contracts for COVID-19 Vaccines and Ancillary Vaccination Materials

CRS “Insight” report, at:  https://crsreports.congress.gov/product/pdf/IN/IN11560

Operation Warp 

Speed(OWS) is an 

interagency partnership 

between… HHS and 

DOD. Collaborating HHS 

components 

include…CDC, NIH, and 

the Biomedical Advanced 

Research and 

Development Authority 

(BARDA).OWS is a 

Trump Administration 

initiative, and while the 

Biden Administration has 

indicated that the 

interagency response to 

COVID-19 will continue, it 

plans to restructure and 
rename the effort.
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Congressional Budget Office (CBO) https://www.cbo.gov/

CBO also does briefs for Congress on legislative issues.

The Budgetary Effects of the Raise the Wage Act of 2021
https://www.cbo.gov/system/files/2021-02/56975-Minimum-Wage.pdf
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https://www.cbo.gov/
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NTRS: NASA Technical Reports Server
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• Many NASA publications are book-length and could be considered 
“core” on the topic.

• Includes conference proceedings/presentations – also some journal 
article reprints (if authors employed by NASA)

• Beautiful graphics and photos!

• Search engine, though, has some challenges
• Works best if you type a few key words without Boolean or filler words

https://ntrs.nasa.gov/

https://ntrs.nasa.gov/
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Title

artemis

Screen 

refreshed after 

selected 2020

Journal article, full-text

content from a NASA Technical Paper (NASA/TP-2020-20517) 

Note: content similar from a NASA Technical 

Paper (NASA/TP-2020-220517) 
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Example of book, with many illustrations and 

graphics, included in NTRS
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[note: the 3 tiny dots are moons… ]    “By this point in the approach sequence, Saturn was large 

enough that two narrow-angle camera images were required to capture an end-to-end view of the 

planet, its delicate rings, and several of its icy moons. The composite is made entirely from these 

two images.” Image Credit: NASA/JPL-Caltech/Space Science Institute



https://pubs.er.usgs.gov/

San Francisco earthquake

1925
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https://pubs.er.usgs.gov/


https://doi.org/10.3133/b324

Includes color plate of downtown
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https://doi.org/10.3133/b324


Plate 56

42



43



44



http://technicalreports.org/

2021 - Piney Point, Florida –

Major leak at wastewater holding retention pond – of phosphogypsum stack

[to cost $200 million or more to clean up and close it] –

Was there anything published decades ago by the gov’t. on phosphate waste?

phosphogypsum
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http://technicalreports.org/
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Metadata includes 

SuDoc, issuing agency, 

series title and report #

This links to it in 

HathiTrust

https://hdl.handle.net/2027/mdp.39015078472050
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https://hdl.handle.net/2027/mdp.39015078472050
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1982 report; Piney Point, very near Tampa Bay, 

was active plant and had “stacks”

Tampa Bay
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https://www.hathitrust.org/

HathiTrust
supports using 
quotation marks

oil spill*

“santa barbara”
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https://www.hathitrust.org/


Make sure to select as the source - Univ. of California copy

[another univ. link is mistakenly to an 1852 journal issue] 52
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Many large university 

libraries have microfiche 

collections – they 

subscribed to SRIM 

from NTIS for selected 

subjects; accession 

number useful
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294 pgs

60 pgs
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https://www.epa.gov/nscep

Recommend using 

Advanced search –

Boolean & phrase 

searching supported

(but not words in the title)

https://www.epa.gov/nscep


global warming

exact phrase

exact match

Other search 

options
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https://nepis.epa.gov/Exe/ZyPDF.cgi/P1010U68.PDF?Dockey=P1010U68.PDF
58

Changed default “sort” order

https://nepis.epa.gov/Exe/ZyPDF.cgi/P1010U68.PDF?Dockey=P1010U68.PDF
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Additional Ways to Become Aware of Reports

• News articles sometimes refer to reports by the U.S. government –
often, they are technical reports.

• Search tips: use a phrase in the report, or author name, or 
company/product that is identified

• Use the agency database (they are updated frequently)
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As for hospital shortages, things aren't as simple as executives failing to prepare 

for trouble, explains Mr. Katyal. After all, they have significant cost pressures of 

their own. Bulk contracting can help hospitals use collective buying power to bring 

down expenses, but that has a downside: A 2019 report from the Food and Drug 

Administration highlighted a lack of financial incentives to maximize production of 

certain drugs, coupled with contracts that could reset prices for manufacturers 

without warning. "Contracts should ensure that manufacturers earn 

sustainable...returns on their investment in launching or continuing to market 

prescription drugs, especially older generic drugs that remain important elements 

of the medical armamentarium."

Wall Street Journal Online, March 19, 2021 

(print ed., March 20, does not have the quote below that is from the report).
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https://www.fda.gov/media/131130/download (124 pgs)

https://www.fda.gov/media/132058/download (14 pgs)
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FDA analyzed 163 drugs that went into shortage in the 5-year 
period between 2013 and 2017. Of the 163 drugs in the 
sample, 63 percent were drugs administered by injection 
(“sterile injectables”) and 67 percent were drugs that have a 
generic version on the market. They were also older drugs, 
with a median time since first approval of almost 35 years. 
After many years off patent, the injectables typically were 
sold at relatively low prices. 

RECOMMENDATION 1: CREATE A SHARED UNDERSTANDING 
OF THE IMPACT OF DRUG SHORTAGES AND THE 
CONTRACTING PRACTICES THAT MAY CONTRIBUTE TO THEM 
…there has been little private or public sector effort to 
collect and analyze comprehensive information to 
characterize shortages, quantify their effects, or closely 
observe the contracting practices that may be driving them. 
• Better characterization of shortages
Currently, neither private nor public sector stakeholders 
quantitatively characterize shortages in terms of their 
frequency, persistence, or intensity; nor do they quantify the 
impact of shortages on available treatments in specific 
therapeutic categories.
• Greater transparency in private sector contracting practices

https://www.fda.gov/media/131130/download
https://www.fda.gov/media/132058/download


News feed from STAT+
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https://www.gao.gov/

Government Accountability Office 
(GAO)
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https://www.gao.gov/
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Questions?

Patricia Kenly, Georgia Tech
patricia.kenly@library.gatech.edu

Bette Finn, Georgia Tech
bette.finn@library.gatech.edu
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